Lancashire County Council

Internal Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday, 21st September, 2018 at 10.00 am in Cabinet Room 'B' - The Diamond Jubilee Room, County Hall, Preston

Present:

County Councillor David O'Toole (Chair)

County Councillors

J Rear P Rigby
J Fillis A Riggott
S Holgate M Salter
M Iqbal D Stansfield
E Lewis D Whipp

E Nash

County Councillor David Stansfield replaced County Councillor George Wilkins for this meeting.

1. Apologies

There were no apologies.

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

None were disclosed.

3. Minutes of the Meetings held on 20 July 2018 and 21 August 2018

Resolved: That the minutes from the meetings held on 20 July and 21 August 2018 be confirmed as an accurate record and signed by the Chair.

4. Update from the Chair

The Chair, David O'Toole, informed the members that the responses from the Asset Management Team and Highways Team would be circulated to them after the meeting and they would be invited to review the information provided. If there were any areas that members felt would require further discussion, they should email Sam Parker, Democratic Services Officer, who would look to include it as part of the work plan.

At the last Internal Scrutiny meeting it was agreed to establish a Budget Scrutiny Review Panel. As part of the Terms of Reference, the membership number was originally set at 8. From further discussions, it had been agreed that the membership was to be extended to nine to ensure political balance. As this panel was agreed at this committee, any changes to the panel membership numbers were required to be reported to the committee. The first meeting of the panel was due to take place in October.

Resolved: The committee note the update from the Chair.

5. Lancashire Parking Services

The Chair welcomed Peter Bell, Regulation and Enforcement Manager; Daniel Herbert, Group Manager Highways; and Keith Iddon, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport, to the meeting.

The report presented provided an overview of Lancashire parking services provision of school and village enforcement, the centralisation of permit administration and the differences of on and off street enforcement.

Regarding the targeted enforcement information set out at Appendix 'A' of the report the Committee was informed that there was a correction regarding June 2018. The totals for June should have read, number of visits 65, number of PCNs issued 59 and 49 vehicles moved on. This effected the final section of the appendix. It should now read:

During April – June 2018:

- 275 targeted visits had been undertaken resulting in
- 264PCNs being issued and
- 219 vehicles being moved on.

Contravention of parking restrictions and inconsiderate parking in and around schools at the beginning and end of the school day was a regular complaint that was received by the county council. In order to tackle this problem a six month trial was implemented at the beginning of 2018 with additional enforcement to provide enhanced enforcement. Contact with schools was made through the schools portal and county councillors had been advised of the initiative. Around 60 schools were sent a letter and only 121 schools had signed up for the enforcement. A number of schools were not accepting the responsibility. LCC was now going to target all schools without request.

In terms of the increased visits and enforcement to zig zag lines outside schools the Committee enquired if this would lead to a reduction in parking enforcement in non-school areas as a consequence. The Lancashire Parking Services Team had a finite resource and therefore targeted the areas which had the most complaints or had the most restrictions.

Regarding Resident Parking Schemes members enquired what LCC's position was in terms of creating and implementing these schemes. It was reported that a pilot scheme on resident parking has taken place with County Councillor Salter consulting with residents in his area and the results of which have been brought back to the council. The outcome of the consultation had proved to be very positive and could be rolled out further.

Concerns were raised over carer's permits but members were assured that no changes had been made in relation to these permits until the statutory consultation had taken place.

In terms of the parking enforcement officers potentially having other enforcement duties e.g. litter, the Committee was informed that the current enforcement contract for deployed officers was for parking enforcement only. However, it was reported that as the contract was due to end, LCC was currently exploring various options which might allow parking enforcement officers to have other duties. LCC would have to work alongside district councils on this.

The question of parking on pavements was raised and it was confirmed that pavement parking was a real challenge in how it was managed and enforced. On the subject of dropped kerb crossings, incidents on these could be enforced by LCC however private drop kerb crossings were not enforced by LCC.

There were queries from members over parking in cycle ways. Highway cycle ways marked with a dashed line were advisory and could not be enforced by LCC. Cycle ways with a solid line were mandatory and could be enforced.

Resolved: That:

- i. The report presented be noted.
- ii. Information on the pilot scheme and any new parking schemes be circulated to members when available.
- iii. The Lancashire parking services report and presentation be circulated to all county councillors.

6. Report of the Grit Bins and Non-Priority Routes Task and Finish Group

County Councillor Holgate presented the final report of the Grit Bins and Non-Priority Task and Finish Group. The report was a result of a lot of hard work by the members. It had been very cooperative and very cross party.

Thanks were given to the Highways Team for their excellent work over the severe winter period.

Resolved: That;

i. The recommendations of the task and finish group be supported.

- ii. An additional recommendation on engaging external contractors for treating secondary routes be added to the report.
- iii. Responses from the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport be presented to the Internal Scrutiny Committee at an appropriate scheduled meeting.

7. Task and Finish Group Request - Education Scrutiny Committee

The report presented set out the request from the Education Scrutiny Committee for a task and finish group to be established on schools causing concern – support arrangements.

Resolved: That the request to establish a task and finish group on schools causing concern – support arrangements be approved.

8. Internal Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19

The work plan for the Internal Scrutiny Committee for the 2018/19 year was presented. The topics included were identified at the work planning workshop held on 2 July 2018.

Resolved: That the report be noted.

9. Urgent Business

There were no items of Urgent Business.

10. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Internal Scrutiny Committee would take place on Friday 16 November 2018 at 10.00am in Cabinet Room B (The Diamond Jubilee Room) at the County Hall, Preston.

L Sales Director of Corporate Services

County Hall Preston